
TOWN COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA, TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 19, 2013 
      Page 1 of 3  

 
 
 

 
Town Council Agenda 
11/19/2013 
 

 
Town of Loxahatchee Groves 

Town Council Meeting 
Tuesday, November 19, 2013 at 7:00 p.m. 

Loxahatchee Groves Water Control District, 101 West “D” Road 
 

   

 
Mayor David Browning (Seat 4)             Town Manager Mark Kutney 
Vice Mayor Ronald D. Jarriel (Seat 1)            Town Clerk Susan A. Eichhorn 
Councilman Tom Goltzené (Seat 5)             Town Attorney Michael D. Cirullo,Jr. 
Councilman Ryan Liang (Seat 3) 
Councilman Jim Rockett (Seat 2) 

 
 

 
PUBLIC NOTICE/AGENDA 

 
1. OPENING 
 

a. Call to Order & Roll Call 
 
b. Pledge of Allegiance & Invocation – Mayor Browning 
 
c. Approval of Agenda 
 

 
2. CONSENT AGENDA   

 
  

 a. Minutes for Approval: Special Town Council Meeting/Workshop October 22,  
  2013  

Tentative  

Subject to Revision 

 

 
1 of 29  Agenda Packet 11/19/13



TOWN COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA, TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 19, 2013 
      Page 2 of 3  

 
 
 

 
Town Council Agenda 
11/19/2013 
 

3.  PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
 
4.  PRESENTATIONS  
 
 
5.  COMMITTEE REPORTS  
 
  
6.  PUBLIC HEARINGS  
 
 
 a. RESOLUTION NO. 2013-06  
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF 
LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA, ADOPTING A BUDGET 
AMENDMENT FOR THE TOWN’S BUDGET FOR THE FISCAL 
YEAR BEGINNING OCTOBER 1, 2012 AND ENDING SEPTEMBER 
30, 2013; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, AND AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 
 b. ORDINANCES- 2nd Reading – None 
   
 
 c.  ORDINANCES 1st Reading - None  
 
 
 7.  ADMINISTRATIVE UPDATE – Town Manager Kutney 
 
  
8.  OLD BUSINESS    

 
 a. Update Regarding Special Acts – Legislation Regarding Roadways  
  (verbal updates) 
 
 b. Update Regarding Minto West Land Use Amendment and Rezoning  
  (verbal updates) 
 
 

 
2 of 29  Agenda Packet 11/19/13



TOWN COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA, TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 19, 2013 
      Page 3 of 3  

 
 
 

 
Town Council Agenda 
11/19/2013 
 

9. NEW BUSINESS 
 
 a. Resurfacing of Bryan, Compton & Marcella (Vice Mayor Jarriel) 
 
 b. Florida Emulsion (Vice Mayor Jarriel) 
 
 c. Scott Blasie – Vacant Registry (Information Packet was distributed to Town  
  Council Members at the 11-5-13 Town Council meeting) 
  
 
10.  CLOSING COMMENTS 
 

a. Public 
 
 
b. Town Attorney   
  
 
c. Town Council Members 
 
 

11.  ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
 

The next regular Town Council Meeting is scheduled for December 3, 2013 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Comment Cards: Anyone from the public wishing to address the Town Council must complete a Comment Card before speaking. This must 
be filled out completely with your full name and address and given to the Town Clerk. During the meeting, before public comments, you may 
only address the item on the agenda in which is being discussed at the time of your comment. During public comments, you may address any 
item you desire. Please remember that there is a three (3) minute time limit on all public comment. Any person who decides to appeal any 
decision of the Council with respect to any matter considered at this meeting will need a record of the proceedings and for such purpose, may 
need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made which included testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based. 
Persons with disabilities requiring accommodations in order to participate should contact the Town Clerk’s Office (561-793-2418), at least 48 
hours in advance to request such accommodation. 

 
3 of 29  Agenda Packet 11/19/13



 

 

 

 

 

 Item 2. A.  

MINUTES FOR APPROVAL:  SPECIAL TOWN COUNCIL 

MEETING/WORKSHOP OCTOBER 22, 2013 

 
4 of 29  Agenda Packet 11/19/13



TOWN COUNCIL WORKSHOP AND 
SPECIAL TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, TUESDAY, OCTOBER 22, 2013 

      Page 1 of 7  

 
 
 

 
Special Town Council Workshop & Meeting Minutes 
10/22/2013 
 

 
Town of Loxahatchee Groves 

Town Council Workshop 
Immediately followed by  

Special Town Council Meeting 
Tuesday, October 22, 2013 at 7:00 p.m. 

Loxahatchee Groves Water Control District, 101 West “D” Road 
 

   

 
Mayor David Browning (Seat 4)             Town Manager Mark Kutney 
Vice Mayor Ronald D. Jarriel (Seat 1)            Town Clerk Susan A. Eichhorn 
Councilman Tom Goltzené (Seat 5)             Town Attorney Michael D. Cirullo,Jr. 
Councilman Ryan Liang (Seat 3) 
Councilman Jim Rockett (Seat 2) 

 
 

 
MINUTES 

 
 

1. OPENING 
 

a. Call to Order & Roll Call 
 

Mayor Browning called the meeting to order at 7:00 pm.  Present were Mayor David Browning, 
Vice Mayor Ronald D. Jarriel, and Councilmen Tom Goltzené. Councilman Jim Rockett arrived 
at 7:05.  Council Ryan Liang was not present. Also present were Town Manager Mark Kutney, 
Town Attorney D.J. Doody, and Perla D Underwood, UMSG. 

 
5 of 29  Agenda Packet 11/19/13



TOWN COUNCIL WORKSHOP AND 
SPECIAL TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, TUESDAY, OCTOBER 22, 2013 

      Page 2 of 7  

 
 
 

 
Special Town Council Workshop & Meeting Minutes 
10/22/2013 
 

 
 
 
b. Pledge of Allegiance & Invocation – Mayor Browning 
 
c. Approval of Agenda 
 
Motion: Councilman Jarriel made a motion to approve the Agenda.  The motion was 
seconded by Councilman Goltzene.  The motion passed 4/0.   
 
. 
 

TOWN COUNCIL WORKSHOP 
(Other Public Officials from the Loxahatchee Groves Water Control District (LGWCD) will 

be in attendance and participating) 
 
 

1. LGWCD PROPOSED LEGISLATION REGARDING ROADWAYS  
 
Town Manager Kutney introduced the topic based on the recent Intergovernmental Coordination  
(IGC) meeting.  He advised that there was no legislation available for review this evening, and 
LGWCD members were not available this evening, with the exception of Mr. Ryan and Mr. 
Schiola, and Administrator Yohe  The issue at hand was the question of  hiring a lobbyist for a 
special act of the legislature and if the Town should participate. 
 
Councilman Goltzené advised that since there was no work product available at this time, the 
matter should not considered at this time.  Vice Mayor Jarriel advised that he felt the Town 
should discuss the hiring of a lobbyist, and that he was of the understanding that the legislation 
would be the same as what had been done previously. Councilman Rockett advised that both 
entities’ legal staff would be working on this matter, and then bring it to each respective board.  
He suggested that the Town Council should provide some direction to them tonight.  
 
John Ryan, 3508 A Rd.:  Commented that the local delegation would not be meeting until 
December, and the bill would be similar to the last bill that was enacted on behalf of the 
LGWCD.  Essentially, the bill would be seeking the District public road impact consistent with 
Florida Statute  95.361.  It would also consider the policy of the LGWCD to turn over resurfaced 
road segments to the Town of Loxahatchee Groves via quite claim deeds as soon as the 
resurfacing was completed.  

 
6 of 29  Agenda Packet 11/19/13



TOWN COUNCIL WORKSHOP AND 
SPECIAL TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, TUESDAY, OCTOBER 22, 2013 

      Page 3 of 7  

 
 
 

 
Special Town Council Workshop & Meeting Minutes 
10/22/2013 
 

He said that he did not see that the wording of the bill would be that complicated, however, 
official action should be based on having a draft of the bill, and the attorneys had not had time to 
circulate a draft of the bill for the workshop tonight.  He explained that the bill would dedicate 
the width of the remaining district roads, within the Town, to the extent that they had been 
constructed, maintained and repaired continuously and uninterruptedly by the District for 7 
years, and shall be dedicated to the public, pursuant to this act.  The one bill would confirm the 
public road status of all of the remaining roads in the District that will go to the Town once the 
resurfacing improvements were made. 
 
Councilman Goltzené asked if regarding the resurfacing improvements were basically OGEM.  
Mr. Ryan replied that the developers are going to be using paving standards from Southern Blvd. 
to the access to the College and then OGEM from there to Collecting Canal; the remaining parts 
of south B Road will be basically OGEMED.  Work was done by the County on North and South 
F.  OGEM improvements would be done on portions of F Road by the Medical Plaza.  One of 
the main differences is that on any of the new road segments the Town has design and spacing 
responsibility for any speed humps.  The original local bill, done in 2011, made it clear that the 
Town had exclusive responsibility for traffic control and safety enforcement.  If roads are not 
improved/OGEMed, they will remain in the District’s control until some additional action is 
taken to turn the road segments over to the Town.  In response to Councilman Goltzene, Mr. 
Ryan advised that the bill would not hamper the Town’s ability to allow a road to remain a dirt 
road.  Councilman Goltzené noted that these actions taken would result in the Town having no 
question on the ability to receive gas tax funds. Mr. Ryan advised that these public roads should 
be considered, just as other rural public roads have been considered by the Florida Statute 
95.361.  
 
Councilman Goltzené advised that it was his understanding that canals which were used as 
drainage for roads were also considered roads; the entire right of way was considered road.  Mr. 
Ryan suggested leaving that to the attorneys to resolve. Mr. Ryan replied that the current 
objective should be to the road surface rather than concentrate on the expanded scope to take the 
right of ways as well.  Mr. Ryan advised that the goal was to get what is realistic.  
 
Councilman Goltzené stated that he thought it very inappropriate that this bill should be done, 
without any back-up material, without any discussion, and just because Mr. Ryan said so. The 
Town Council instructed its attorney to work on the bill, and that did not happen. 
 
Mayor Browning advised that the original legislation did not include the trails, and advised that 
his thought was to keep it as close to the original legislation, so that it passes.  However, that the 
Town needs to be working on getting all of the right-of-ways.  
 

 
7 of 29  Agenda Packet 11/19/13



TOWN COUNCIL WORKSHOP AND 
SPECIAL TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, TUESDAY, OCTOBER 22, 2013 

      Page 4 of 7  

 
 
 

 
Special Town Council Workshop & Meeting Minutes 
10/22/2013 
 

Councilman Rockett advised that Mr. Ryan and Councilman Goltzené were at the IGC meeting, 
and each thought something different happened at that meeting. If structuring the bill just like the 
other one would be looked upon as something that makes it easier to get the bill through, it 
should be considered.  The Town Council directed its Town Attorney to work with the LGWCD 
staff and attorney. 
 
Vice Mayor Jarriel commented that it bothered him that roads cannot be turned over to the Town 
directly without improvements.  He advised that if the residents didn’t have to pay for the 
OGEM they would be in favor of OGEM, and that he did not feel that the system that is in place 
on assessing is fair.   
 
Mayor Browning clarified that this bill would contain all of the remainder of the District roads in 
Loxahatchee Groves.  Mr. Ryan agreed with that.   
 
Discussion took place regarding the to the west side of all of the canals and the maintenance 
issues involved, and including that in the legislative bill, as a second part.  Mayor Browning 
commented that he would like to see support for the bill on the roads, and then immediately put 
together another bill immediately that would include all of the right-of-ways along every road 
that was a District road, that would transfer the uses over to the town to use as horse trails.   
 
Acting Town Attorney Doody advised that action can only be taken at a regular meeting, 
however, he understood what the Town Council would like to do with respect to this matter and 
he would confer with Town Attorney Cirullo and LGWCD Attorney Mary Viator. 
 
Discussion took place regarding whether a different lobbyist would need to be used for the right-
of-way areas.  Councilman Rockett commented regarding the concept of a lobbyist.  He noted 
that he presumed that the cost of the lobbyist would be shared by the District and the Town half 
and half.  He stated that the two boards were working together to get something done. 
 
Acting Town Attorney Doody gave assurance that the bill will come before the Town Council 
for approval before it is submitted.   
 
Frank Schiola, Marcella Blvd, LGWCD Board of Supervisors:  Commented that having the same 
lobbyist would be beneficial for both the roads and the right-of-ways, in two separate bills. 
 
Todd McClendon, 3481 Rd.:  Commented that the Town is legally collecting Gas Tax Fund for 
the roads so why does the Town have to go through this process now. 
 

 
8 of 29  Agenda Packet 11/19/13



TOWN COUNCIL WORKSHOP AND 
SPECIAL TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, TUESDAY, OCTOBER 22, 2013 

      Page 5 of 7  

 
 
 

 
Special Town Council Workshop & Meeting Minutes 
10/22/2013 
 

Virginia Standish, 15410 North Rd.:  Commented regarding Florida Statute 95.361, the money 
being spent, the roads needing to be OGEMed, and the lack of support for horse trails.  
 
 
 
 
 
2. “B” ROAD IMPROVEMENTS (Please Note:  Representatives from Loxahatchee Groves 
 Commons PUD and Loxahatchee Groves Town Center PUD, and Palm Beach State 
 College will be invited to attend). 
 
Town Manager Kutney stated that Joe Lelonek from Atlantic Land Realty, Inc., representing 
Loxahatchee Groves Commons, and Marty Perry representing Solar Sports and a number of 
Palm Beach State College representatives were present regarding the improvements to “B” Road.  
One issue that had arisen was that there was an issue with B Road in that part of the roadway is 
located on private right-of-ways.    
 
Joe Lelonek addressed the Town Council, and reviewed the proposed B Road improvements, 
noting that it would be between the three parties.  A framework of the agreement would be 
available within the next month.  Construction would begin thereafter with the College looking 
for some work to begin at the beginning of 2014, and Loxahatchee Groves Commons looking to 
begin development at the end of next year.  Solar Sports did not yet have a timeline established. 
  
Marty Perry discussed the complexity of the upcoming project noting that the Town would be 
given the money to build their road and the liability would be the Town, as it is the Town Road.   
 
Vice Mayor Jarriel advised that drainage must be taken into consideration on this project, and 
that he would like the OGEM project done before the College is built.   
 
  

 
3. OTHER ROAD MATTERS AFFECTING LGWCD 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
9 of 29  Agenda Packet 11/19/13



TOWN COUNCIL WORKSHOP AND 
SPECIAL TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, TUESDAY, OCTOBER 22, 2013 

      Page 6 of 7  

 
 
 

 
Special Town Council Workshop & Meeting Minutes 
10/22/2013 
 

 
SPECIAL TOWN COUNCIL MEETING 

 
 
1. DISCUSSION OF TOWN IINVOLVEMENT AND APPROACH TO MINTO WEST 
 AND HIGHLAND DUNES DEVELOPMENTS 
 
 a. Budgetary Considerations 
 
Mayor Browning opened the discussion, noting that the Palm Beach County Commission would 
be meeting regarding this matter of the upcoming Thursday. 
 
Town Manager Kutney advised that discussion would entail the approach of the Town to this 
matter, and it needed to be decided whether the Town Attorney, Town Planner, or Town 
consultants would be required to provide assistance. 
 
Mayor Browning stated that there was support from surrounding communities, and that he had 
met with each Palm Beach County Commissioner to share the concerns of the Town, regarding 
the density of the project, as well as the other development projects proposed.  He noted that 
these developments would greatly affect Okeechobee Blvd. 
 
Discussion ensued.   
 
Motion: Councilman Rockett made a motion to authorize the use of the Town 
Attorney for the meeting to be held on Thursday by the Palm Beach County Commission, 
and the Mayor could authorize any additional expenses he needed to make the 
presentation.  Vice Mayor Jarriel seconded the motion.  The motion passed 4/0.   
 
Public Comment: 
 
Bill Louda – E Rd.:  Commented regarding the Highland Dunes project and the Minto 
development project. 
 
After discussion, Mayor Browning advised that he would be attending the Palm Beach County 
Commission meeting regarding the Minto development, and he did not think the Town Attorney 
services would be needed for that meeting. 
 

 
10 of 29  Agenda Packet 11/19/13



TOWN COUNCIL WORKSHOP AND 
SPECIAL TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, TUESDAY, OCTOBER 22, 2013 

      Page 7 of 7  

 
 
 

 
Special Town Council Workshop & Meeting Minutes 
10/22/2013 
 

Motion: Councilman Rockett made a motion to authorize the Mayor to make a 
decision regarding the use of the Town Attorney for the Minto development meeting.  The 
motion was seconded by Vice Mayor  Jarriel.  The motion passed 4/0.  
 
 
 
 
 
2. CLOSING COMMENTS 
 

 a. Public 
 
 b. Town Attorney   
 
 c. Town Council Members 
 
 

Councilman Rockett commented regarding the Western Communities Council meeting, and the 
proposed extension of 441 (SR 7).  Representatives present suggested supporting a Lobbyist for 
assistance in this matter.  Mr. Rockett advised that he believed that this was important to the 
Town, and would like to discuss it at the November 5, 2013 meeting.   

 
 

 
3.  ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no further business, the Special Town Council meeting of October 22, 2013, was 
adjourned at 9:04 p.m.            . 
 
 
 
 
________________________________  ______________________________ 
Susan Eichhorn, Town Clerk    David Browning, Mayor 
 
 
(SEAL) 

 
 

 
11 of 29  Agenda Packet 11/19/13



 

 

 

 

 

 Item 6. A.  

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2013‐06 

 
12 of 29  Agenda Packet 11/19/13



Underwood Management Services Group, LLC 
 

 
840 N.E. Stokes Terrace William F. Underwood, II 
Jensen Beach, Florida 34957 Managing Partner 
Telephone: 772.233.1511 Email: umsg@att.net 

 

 
Memorandum 

 
 
 
 
To: Honorable Mayor and Council 

From: William F. Underwood, II   
Date: November 9, 2013 
 
Subject: End of Year Budget Amendment 
 
As the Council is aware, staff typically submits several budget amendments through the year 
for consideration and adoption which modifies either or both the estimated revenues and 
appropriations. This is done in order to afford latitude and flexibility to provide for 
unanticipated expenditures that occur during the course of the fiscal year. 
 
The budget amendment provided to the Council at its November 5, 2013, meeting was an 
attempt to bring into compliance budget appropriations that may have or will be exceeded in 
fiscal year 2013. Foremost, it is important to acknowledge that a budget is not an accounting 
document; however, they provide a framework for the allocation of resources to meet the 
policy directions established by the Council. 
 
Pursuant to State Statute, the Town must provide that budgeted revenues and other sources 
must equal the total estimated expenditures or appropriations for that fiscal Year. Explicitly, 
FSS 166.241(2) in part states: 
 

“The amount available from taxation and other sources, including balances 
brought forward from prior fiscal years, must equal the total appropriations for 
expenditures and reserves.” 

 
This action was requested pursuant to FSS 166.241(5), which allows the Town to modify its 
budget within 60 days following the end of the fiscal year. The sole purpose of this requested 
action is to provide an appropriation such that accounts or account categories are not over 
expended. This action is not intended to fine-tune the estimated revenues, appropriations, and 
funds balances, but to assure the Council and citizens that sufficient revenues and other 
sources can be used to balance to appropriations or estimated expenditures. These will likely 
change as revenues and accounts payable invoices for September continue to be received 
through the end of November. All remaining monies in the various operating funds are left in 
those funds to meet unexpected future expenditures. 

 
13 of 29  Agenda Packet 11/19/13



General Fund 
 
Revenues in the proposed Budget Amendment increased the Town’s adopted supplemental 
budget by approximately $117,954.00. 
 

 We estimate that General Fund actual revenue received would increase about $12.6 
thousand. 

 
The original appropriation of $523,752 (Transfer from Fund Balance) is specifically 
presented in a Budget format for purposes of informing that actual revenues are 
insufficient for the Budget, and it is necessary to use unassigned Fund Balance. 

 
 Transfer from Fund Balance is never reflected as a revenue in Ledger transactions. 

While $526,000 was transferred to the CIP and Solid Waste Funds as expenditures and 
is reflected in the Ledger Transaction Detail, other General Fund revenues were used. 

 
 The end-of-year budget amendment also reflects an additional $105,326 use of 

unassigned General Fund fund balance used along with other revenues to reimburse 
the Transportation Fund (North Road OGEM). 

 
Appropriation or expenditure changes are recommended to assure that all accounts or account 
categories have enough budgeted to exceed anticipated invoices that will come in after 
September and before the external auditor completes their work. 
 

 The most significant impact is the $141,844 transfer to the Transportation Fund as a 
reimbursement for providing OGEM on a portion of North Road, which the LGWCD has 
yet provided title to the right-of-way.  This action was a result of the fiscal year 2012 
audit report. 

 
 Various other changes are recommended through the operating budget that reflects a 

net estimated expenditure reduction of $23,887. 
 

Capital Improvement Fund 
 
Revenues in this fund have been provided through transfers from other funds.  During the 
2013 fiscal year, the Town Council anticipated several projects that would consume in excess 
of $1,312,466 appropriation. 
 

 Assigned Capital Improvement Fund (CIP) fund balance was $912,466. 
 

 A General Fund Transfer of $400,000 was completed for additional revenue. 
 
Town Council did not undertake appropriation or expenditure changes for various projects 
during the fiscal year. Therefore, we modified the appropriation requests to equal the revenue 
that was accepted in the CIP fund from the General Fund. 

 
 
 
 

Page | 2 
 

Underwood Management Services Group, LLC 

 
14 of 29  Agenda Packet 11/19/13



Within the CIP fund, there exists a balance of $1,400,000 at the end of fiscal year 2013 
available for projects in fiscal year 2014.  The Town Council approved $1,802,564 in projects 
and it is anticipated the Town will transfer Transportation money preliminarily funding the CIP. 
 

Transportation and Solid Waste Funds 
 
 

No significant revenues and appropriations or expenditures changes. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page | 3 
 

Underwood Management Services Group, LLC 

 
15 of 29  Agenda Packet 11/19/13



 

TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 

OFFICE OF THE TOWN MANAGER 

AGENDA REPORT 
 
 
 
 

TO:                 Mayor and Town Council 
 

 

FROM:          Mark A. Kutney, Town Manager, AICP, ICMA-CM 
 

 

DATE:           October 30, 2013 
 

 

SUBJECT:    Budget Amendment for The Town’s Budget for the Fiscal Year beginning 
October 1, 2012 and ending September 30, 2013 

 
 

 
I. BACKGROUND/HISTORY 

 

 

Florida Statute 166.241 (4) permits each municipality to amend its adopted budget at any time 
within a fiscal year or within 60 days following the end of a fiscal year. Town Management has 
concluded a review of the budget and expenditures during the fiscal year beginning October 1, 
2012 and ending September 30, 2013 and is recommending amendments to the Town’s budget as 
set forth in the exhibit attached to Resolution 2013-16. 

 
 
 

II. DISCUSSION 
 

 

This amendment provides the necessary changes to the estimated revenues and appropriations 
during the Fiscal Year 2012-2013 for all funds. The amendment also includes the Statement of 
Estimated Changes in Fund Balances as requested by Councilman Rockett. 

 

 
 
 
 

III. FISCAL IMPACT 
 

This amendment will clean up the remaining changes necessary and related to estimated 
revenues and appropriations for the fiscal year 2012-2013 to end in balance. 

 

 
 
 

IV. ATTACHMENTS 

 
16 of 29  Agenda Packet 11/19/13



Resolution 2013-16 and Exhibit “A” Budget Amendments for the Fiscal Year Beginning October 
1, 2012 and ending on September 30, 2013. 

 
 
 
 

V. REQUESTED ACTION 
 

 

Motion by Town Council to approve the Budget Amendments for Fiscal Year 2012-2013 

 
17 of 29  Agenda Packet 11/19/13



TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 

RESOLUTION NO. 2013-16 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF 
LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA, ADOPTING A BUDGET 
AMENDMENT FOR THE TOWN’S BUDGET FOR THE FISCAL 
YEAR BEGINNING OCTOBER 1, 2012 AND ENDING SEPTEMBER 
30, 2013; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, AND AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 166.241(4), Florida Statutes, the Town may amend its 

adopted budget for the Fiscal Year beginning October 1, 2012 and ending September 30, 2013, at 

any time within a fiscal year, and 

WHEREAS, the Town Management has concluded a review of the budget and expenditures 

during the Fiscal Year beginning October 1, 2012 and ending September 30, 2013, and is 

recommending amendments to the Town’s budget as set forth in Exhibit A” hereto. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE 

TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA: 

Section 1.        Each "WHEREAS" clause set forth above is true and correct and herein 

incorporated by this reference. 

Section 2.        The Town’s adopted budget for the Fiscal Year beginning October 1, 2012, 
 
and ending September 30, 2013, is hereby amended as set forth in Exhibit “A”, attached hereto and 

expressly made a part hereof. 

Section 3.        If any clause, section, or other part of this Resolution shall be held by any 

court of competent jurisdiction to be unconstitutional or invalid, such unconstitutional or invalid part 

shall be considered as eliminated and shall in no way affect the validity of the remaining portions of 

this Resolution. 

Section 4. All resolutions or parts of resolutions in conflict herewith are hereby repealed 

 
18 of 29  Agenda Packet 11/19/13



to the extent of such conflict. 
 

Section 5. This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon its passage and 

adoption. 

PASSED  AND  ADOPTED  BY  THE  TOWN  OF  LOXAHATCHEE  GROVES, 
FLORIDA, THIS 19th DAY OF NOVEMBER, 2013. 

 

 
 
 
 
 

ATTEST: TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, 
FLORIDA 

 
TOWN CLERK 

 

 

Mayor David Browning 
 
APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM: 

 

 

Vice Mayor Ron Jarriel 
 

 
 

Office of the Town Attorney Council Member Tom Goltzene 
 

 
 

Council Member Ryan Liang 
 

 
 

Council Member Jim Rockett 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
2 – Res. 2013-16 

 
19 of 29  Agenda Packet 11/19/13



EXHIBIT "A" 
 
(BUDGET AMENDMENTS FOR THE FISCAL YEAR BEGINNING OCTOBER 1, 2012 

AND ENDING ON SEPTEMBER 30, 2013) 

 
20 of 29  Agenda Packet 11/19/13



All Funds 
Fiscal Year 2012-13 

 

 
 
 
 
Fund # 

  FY11-12 

ADOPTED 

BUDGET 

FY11-12 

CHANGE 

FY11-12 

AMENDED 

BUDGET 

 

 
ESTIMATED REVENUES 

 

001 GENERAL FUND 1,615,280 117,954 1,733,234
101 TRANSPORTATION FUND 366,571 - 366,571 

305 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT FUND 1,312,466 (912,466) 400,000 

405 SOLID WASTE FUND 484,969 - 484,969 

  Total Estimated Revnue 3,779,286 (794,512) 2,984,774 
 

 
APPROPRIATIONS 

 

001 GENERAL FUND 1,615,280 117,954 1,733,234
101 TRANSPORTATION FUND 366,571 - 366,571 

305 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT FUND 1,312,466 (912,466) 400,000 

405 SOLID WASTE FUND 484,969 - 484,969 

  Total Appropriations 3,779,286 (794,512) 2,984,774 

 
21 of 29  Agenda Packet 11/19/13



GENERAL FUND:
Fiscal Year 2012-13

 

 
 

 
Account Number 

  FY12-13 
ADOPTED 
BUDGET 

FY12-13 
CHANGE 

FY12-13 
AMENDED 
BUDGET 

 
 

TAXES 
ESTIMATED REVENUES 

001-311-100-000 AD VALOREM TAXES @ 1.2000 210,005   210,005 

  TAXES SUBTOTAL 210,005 0 210,005 
 

001-314-100-000 ELECTRIC UTILITY TAX 202,000   202,000 
001-314-510-000 COMMUNICATION  SERVICES TAX 116,726   116,726 
001-316-200-000 COUNTY OCCUPATIONAL LICENSES 3,800 4,788 8,588 

  TAXES SUBTOTAL 322,526 4,788 327,314 
 

001-323-100-000 FPL FRANCHISE FEE 206,000   206,000 
001-323-125-000 HAULER LICENSING FEE 2,000   2,000 
001-323-300-000 PBC WATER UTILITY FRANCHISE FEE 6,500 (550) 5,950 
001-329-100-000 PLANNING & ZONING PERMIT 500 476 976 

  PERMITS, FRANCHISE FEES & SPECIAL SUBTOTAL 215,000 (74) 214,926 

001-335-120-000 STATE REVENUE SHARING 77,873 7,060 84,933 
001-335-180-000 HALF CENT SALES TAX 212,024 4,700 216,724 

  INTERGOVERNMENTAL REVENUE SUBTOTAL 289,897 11,760 301,657 
 

001-341-000-000 GENERAL GOVERNMENT CHARGES 7,500   3,500   11,000 
001-343-349-000 COST RECOVERY FEES 35,000   35,000 

  CHARGES FOR SERVICES 42,500 3,500 46,000 

001-351-100-000 COURT FINES 2,500 (1,000) 1,500 
001-354-100-000 CODE ENFORCEMENT FINES 5,000 (4,700) 300 

JUDGEMENTS, FINES & FORFEITS SUBTOTAL 7,500 (5,700) 1,800
   

MISCELLANEOUS 
     

001-361-100-000 INTEREST 3,600 (3,350) 250 
001-369-000-000 OTHER MISC INCOME 500 1,704 2,204 

  OTHER MISC. REVENUE SUBTOTAL 4,100 (1,646) 2,454 
 

001-385-100-000 TRANSFER FROM SANITATION  FUND -   -
001-399-000-000 TRANSFER FROM  FUND BALANCE 523,752 105,326 629,078 

  OTHER NON-OPERATING SOURCES TOTAL 523,752 105,326 629,078 

GRAND TOTAL REVENUE 1,615,280 117,954 1,733,234

 
22 of 29  Agenda Packet 11/19/13



GENERAL FUND:
Fiscal Year 2012-13

 

001-515-310-000 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 59,493   1,000   60,493 
001-515-340-000 OTHER SERVICES 76,740 0 76,740 
001-515-343-000 PLANNING & ZONING CONTRACT - 0 -
001-515-347-000 COMPREHENSIVE  PLAN - 0 -
001-515-349-000 COST RECOVERY EXPENDITURES 35,000 5,100 40,100 
001-515-490-000 LEGAL ADVERTISING - (New) 6,000 (1,000) 5,000 

 
 

 
Account Number 

  FY12-13 
ADOPTED 
BUDGET 

FY12-13 
CHANGE 

FY12-13 
AMENDED 
BUDGET 

 
 

LEGISLATIVE 
APPROPRIATIONS 

 

001-511-310-000 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 15,000 (1,600) 13,400 
001-511-400-000 TRAVEL 2,000 (1,500) 500 
001-511-490-000 POSTAGE & FREIGHT - (Was legal advertising) -   -
001-511-492-000 OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES 1,500   1,500 
001-511-499-000 OTHER CURRENT CHARGES - New Town Counsel Compensaton 15,000 2,500 17,500 
001-511-500-000 EDUCATION AND TRAINING 1,000 (1,000) -
001-511-510-000 OFFICE SUPPLIES 300 0 300 
001-511-520-000 OPERATING SUPPLIES 300 0 300 
001-511-540-000 BOOKS, PUBLICATIONS  AND DUES 4,785   1,600   6,385 
001-511-820-000 SPECIAL EVENTS/CONTRIBUTIONS 3,350 0 3,350 

LEGISLATIVE TOTAL 43,235 0 43,235
 

EXECUTIVE 
001-512-340-000 OTHER SERVICES 256,414 0 256,414 
001-512-400-000 TRAVEL 1,500 (150) 1,350 
001-512-410-000 COMMUNICATION  SERVICES - (Moved to Gen Govt) - 130 130 
001-512-420-000 POSTAGE & FREIGHT 1,500 600 2,100 
001-512-490-000 LEGAL ADVERTISING - (New) 1,000 (100) 900 
001-512-492-000 OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES 944 (700) 244 
001-512-493-000 ELECTION EXPENSE 7,010 0 7,010 
001-512-510-000 OFFICE SUPPLIES 8,600    3,000 11,600
001-512-521-000 LOXAHATCHEE GROVES C.E.R.T. - (Moved to Gen Govt) -  - 
001-512-540-000 BOOKS, PUBLICATIONS AND DUES 570  (570)  - 

EXECUTIVE TOTAL 277,538  2,210 279,748 

   
FINANICAL AND ADMINSTRATIVE

     

001-513-320-000 ACCOUNTING  AND AUDITING 16,500 (400) 16,100 
001-513-470-000 PRINTING AND BINDING 4,750 (1,800) 2,950 
001-513-490-000 LEGAL ADVERTISING 1,000 1,000 2,000 
001-513-493-000 ELECTION EXPENSE - (Moved to Executive) - 0 - 

FINANICAL AND ADMINSTRATIVE TOTAL 22,250 (1,200) 21,050

   
LEGAL COUNSEL 

     

001-514-310-000 
001-514-312-000 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 
LEGAL -COMP PLAN 

120,000    (13,000)  
- 

107,000 
- 

LEGAL SERVICES TOTAL 120,000  (13,000) 107,000
 
 

PLANNING & ZONING 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

COMPREHENSIVE PLANNING AND ZONING TOTAL   177,233  5,100  182,333   

 
23 of 29  Agenda Packet 11/19/13



GENERAL FUND:
Fiscal Year 2012-13

 

001-519-315-000 SPECIAL MAGISTRATE 26,000 (2,000) 24,000 
001-519-354-000 CODE COMPLIANCE 39,000 (10,000) 29,000 
001-519-410-000 COMMUNICATION  SERVICES 5,700 800 6,500 
001-519-440-000 RENTALS AND LEASES 20,000 (900) 19,100 
001-519-450-000 INSURANCE 17,500 0 17,500
001-519-460-000  R & M BUILDINGS  2,426    200   2,626 
001-519-470-000 PRINTING AND BINDING - 0 -
001-519-480-000 PROMOTIONAL  ACTIVITIES - 0 -
001-519-490-000 COMPUTER EQUIP SOFTWARE & HARDWARE REPAIR 3,000 0 3,000 
001-519-491-000 COMPUTER SERVICES 5,631 (1,200) 4,431 
001-519-494-000 INSPECTOR GENERAL OFFICE FEE 5,280 (1,600) 3,680 
001-519-810-000 AIDS TO GOVERNMENT  AGENCIES GRANT - LGWCD 28,893 0 28,893 
001-519-820-000 LOXAHATCHEE  GROVES CERT 3,000 200 3,200 
001-519-900-000 TRANSFER TO TRANSPORTATION  FUND - 141,844 141,844 
001-519-910-000 TRANSFER TO SANITATION FUND 137,309 0 137,309 
001-519-920-000 TRANSFER TO CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND 400,000 0 400,000 
001-519-990-000 CONTINGENCY - 0 -

OTHER GENERAL GOVERNMENT SERVICES TOTAL 693,739 127,344 821,083

   
LAW ENFORCEMENT

     

001-521-341-000 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES-PBSO 274,785 500 275,285 
001-521-342-000 CONTRACTUAL-ADDL PBSO 500 (500) -

 
 

 
Account Number 

  FY12-13 
ADOPTED 
BUDGET 

FY12-13 
CHANGE 

FY12-13 
AMENDED 
BUDGET 

 

OTHER GENERAL GOVERNMENT 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

LAW ENFORCEMENT TOTAL   275,285  0  275,285   

 
PUBLIC WORKS 

001-539-340-000 OTHER SERVICES 6,000    (2,500)  3,500 

001-539-310-000 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES -  0 -

  PUBLIC WORKS  TOTAL 6,000  (2,500) 3,500 
 

GRAND TOTAL EXPENDITURES 1,615,280  117,954  1,733,234 

 
24 of 29  Agenda Packet 11/19/13



Transportation Fund
Fiscal Year 2012-13 

 

 

 

 
 
 
Account Number 

  FY12-13
ADOPTED 
BUDGET 

FY12-13 
CHANGE 

FY12-13
AMENDED 
BUDGET 

 
ESTIMATED REVENUES 

 

101-312-410-000 FIRST LOCAL OPTION FUEL TAX (6 CENT) 249,245 249,245
101-312-420-000 SECOND LOCAL OPTION FUEL (5 CENT) 117,326 - 117,326 
101-363-990-000 CONTRIBUTION FROM GENERAL FUND - -
001-399-000-000 TRANSFER FROM  FUND BALANCE (6 CT) - - - 

  Total Revenue 366,571 0 366,571
 
 

APPROPRIATIONS 
 

101-541-467-000 TRAFFIC CONTROL SIGNS - 6 c 16,245 2,900 19,145
101-541-468-000 TOWN ROADS MAINT. - 6 c 80,000 (2,900) 77,100 
101-541-469-000 
101-541-631-000 

ROAD MAINTENANCE DISTRICT - 6 c 
ROAD AND STREETS - NEW CONSTRUCTION - 

150,000
-
  150,000 

-

101-541-632-000 
101-541-633-000 
101-541-634-000 
101-541-990-000 

SPECIAL PROJECTS 
22nd ROAD DITCH 
148th TERR BRIDGE(5)/CULVERT 
TRANSFER TO FUND BALANCE (5 CT) 

-
-
-

117,326

  -
-
-

117,326
101-541-996-000 TRANSFER TO FUND BALANCE (6 CT) 3,000   3,000 

  Total Expenditure 366,571 - 366,571 

 
25 of 29  Agenda Packet 11/19/13



 

 

 
 
 
Account Number 

  FY11-12
ADOPTED 
BUDGET 

FY11-12 
CHANGE 

FY11-12
AMENDED 
BUDGET 

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT FUND 
Fiscal Year 2012-13 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ESTIMATED REVENUES 
 

305-363-990-000 CONTRIBUTION FROM GENERAL FUND 400,000 400,000
305-399-000-000 TRANSFER FROM FUND BALANCE 912,466 (912,466) -

  Total Revenue 1,312,466 (912,466) 400,000 

 
APPROPRIATIONS 

 

305-519-600-000 DEVELOP TOWN HALL ALTERNATIVES 500,000 (500,000) -
305-541-341-000 

305-541-346-000 

TRAILS (Name change Linear Park/Grant Match) 

OGEM PAVING/COST SHARING 

200,000

-

  200,000

-

305-541-434-000 ROAD & DRAINAGE IMPROVEMENT 362,466 (162,466) 200,000 

305-541-436-000 TRAFFIC LIGHT OKEECHOBEE BLVD 250,000 (250,000) -

  Total Expenditure 1,312,466 (912,466) 400,000 

 
26 of 29  Agenda Packet 11/19/13



 

Solid Waste Fund 
Fiscal Year 2012-13 

 

 
 
 
 
 
Account Number 

  FY12-13
ADOPTED 
BUDGET 

FY12-13
CHANGE 

FY12-13 
AMENDED 
BUDGET 

 
  ESTIMATED REVENUES  

405-323-125-000 

405-325-205-000 

HAULERS LICENSING FEE - Moved to Gen F 

SOLID WASTE ASSESSMENTS (1,260 units) 

- 

350,052 

- - 

350,052 
405-325-206-000 DISCOUNT FEES (10,392) - (10,392)

405-343-120-000 SWA RECYCLING INCOME 8,000 8,000

405-363-990-000 CONTRIBUTION FROM GENERAL FUND 137,309 - 137,309 

  Total Revenue 484,969 - 484,969 

 
APPROPRIATIONS 

 

405-534-345-000 CONTRACTUAL-WASTE OVERSIGHT 12,000 (790) 11,210 
405-534-346-000 PBC ADMINSTRATION FEE 1% 3,463 790 4,253 

405-534-420-000 POSTAGE & FREIGHT 500 - 500 

405-534-434-000 SOLID WASTE CONTRACTOR 451,634   451,634 

405-534-436-000 OTHER SANITATION SERVICES 16,500 - 16,500 

405-534-490-000 

405-534-595-000 

LEGAL ADVERTISING 

TOLG MANAGEMENT FEES 

872

-

- 872

-

  Total Expenditure 484,969 - 484,969 

 
27 of 29  Agenda Packet 11/19/13



 

Town of Loxahatchee Groves, Florida 
 
 
 

Statement of Estimated Changes in Fund Balances 
General Fund 

CAFR UNASSIGNED FUND BALANCE 

 
9/30/12 Fund Balance  $1,311,888 

 

 
FY2013 Fiscal Policy Reserve @ 25% 

 
($398,270) 

FY 2013 Transfer to CIP 
Reimburse Transportation Fund for Capital 

Expenditure (North Road OGEM) 

($400,000)

 
($141,844) 

FY 2013 July Transfer to Solid Waste Fund  ($137,309) 

FY 2013 Est. Total Fund Balance  $234,466 
FY 2014 Est. Total Fund Balance  $234,466

Transportation Fund 
CAFR UNASSIGNED FUND BALANCE 

 
5 cent Fund Balance

9/30/12 Fund Balance 

 
FY 2013 Estimated Change 

FY 2013 Est. Total Fund Balance 

FY 2014 Appropriated (Budgeted ) Fund Balance 

FY 2014 Est. Total ASSIGNED Fund Balance 

 
$320,012

6 cent Fund Balance 

9/30/12 Fund Balance 

 
FY 2013 Reimbursement North Road OGEM 

FY 2013 Est. Total Fund Balance 

FY 2014 Appropriated (Budgeted ) Fund Balance 

FY 2014 Est. Total ASSIGNED Fund Balance 

$322,347

 
$117,326 $141,844

$437,338

($437,000)

$464,191

($419,191)

$338 $45,000
 

 

Solid Waste Fund 
CAFR UNASSIGNED FUND BALANCE 

 

9/30/12 Fund Balance  $31,689 

Fiscal Policy Reserve @ 10%  ($46,997)
FY 2013 Estimated Change  5,000

Est. Total Fund Balance 9/30/12  ($10,308)
FY 2014 Est. Total Fund Balance  ($10,308)

Actual results may require a contribution from the General Fund to meet the Fiscal Policy 

 

Capital Improvement Program 
CAFR ASSIGNED FUND BALANCE 

9/30/12 ASSIGNED Fund Balance  $1,000,000 

 

FY 2013 Estimated Change 
 

$400,000 

FY 2013 Est. Total ASSIGNED Fund Balance  $1,400,000
FY 2014 Appropriated (Budgeted ) Fund Balance  ($973,517)

FY 2014 Est. Total ASSIGNED Fund Balance  $426,483 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

UMSG,LLC  10/29/201310:18 PM   
28 of 29  Agenda Packet 11/19/13



 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Item 9. A. B. C. 
 

 
 

(NO BACK UP) 


	2.a MINUTES
	6.a RESOLUTION NO.2013-06



